
 

 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

 
 

9 November 2023 
 
 
 
 

Chairman:  Councillor Neil Poole 
 

Venue:  Room F36, Church 
Square House 

 
Time:  2.00 pm E-Mail Address:  

Dean.Gillon@northlincs.gov.uk 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
  
1.   Substitutions (if any)   

  
2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal 

and Prejudicial Interests.   
  

3.   To take the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 29 
June 2023 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.  (Pages 1 - 
4) 
  

4.   Review of Protocol on Member and Officer Relations  (Pages 5 - 30) 
  

5.   Renewal of Dispensation - Steel Industry  (Pages 31 - 34) 
  

6.   NLC / Humberside Police Protocol - Verbal update   
  

7.   Standards Arrangements and Code of Conduct - Online Training Package   
  

8.   Complaints Schedule - Update.  (Pages 35 - 38) 
  

9.   Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent by reason of special 
circumstances which must be specified.   
  

Note: Reports are by the Director: Outcomes unless otherwise 
stated.  
 

 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

29 June 2023 
 

PRESENT: - Cllr N Poole (Chairman) 
 
Cllr M Ali, Cllr A Davison, Cllr A Ellerby, Cllr R Ogg, Cllr C Ross and Cllr D Wells 
 
Mr R Johnson, Independent Person.  
 
The meeting was held in room F36, Church Square House. 
  
455 SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY) 

  
Cllrs Davison and Ellerby substituted for Cllrs O’Sullivan and Swift. 
  

456 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests or personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests. 
  

457 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 15 MARCH 2023 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND 
AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN. 
  
Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting of this committee held on 15 
March 2023, having been printed and circulated amongst the members, be 
taken as read and correctly recorded and be signed by the chairman.  
  
  

458 STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 
 
The Director: Governance & Communities submitted the draft Annual Report 
of the Standards Committee, under the council’s standards regime and the 
Localism Act, covering the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023. 
  
In the draft Annual Report the Monitoring Officer referred to the number of 
complaints in 2022/23, and described which complaints were considered by 
an Assessment Panel, and which were determined by the Monitoring Officer, 
in consultation with the Independent Person. 
  
In the report, the Monitoring Officer informed the Standards Committee that, 
further to the training in previous years, an additional online training session 
had been hosted on 29 March 2022 for newly elected/co-opted councillors 
and newly-employed clerks of Town and Parish Councils. This session had 
been well-attended, and annual training would continue to be provided, 
including online or virtual sessions. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
29 June 2023 

 

  
The Annual Report confirmed that the Monitoring Officer continued to meet 
regularly with his counterpart at North East Lincolnshire Council, the East 
Riding and Northern Lincolnshire Local Councils Association (ERNLLCA), 
and the Independent Persons, to review existing practice and keep abreast of 
national and regional developments. 
  
The council continued to be a member of the Standards Exchange, a 
specialist website set up by practitioners as a platform to share good practice 
and to keep updated on national standards related developments. 
  
Resolved – (a) That the 2022/23 Annual Report be approved, (b) that the 
Annual Report be circulated to all Town and Parish Councils in the North 
Lincolnshire area, (c) that the Annual Report be submitted to council, in 
accordance with the Annual Governance Statement; and (d) that the 
Independent Persons be thanked for their time, hard work, and commitment 
to supporting and advising the Standards Committee.   
  
  

459 NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL / HUMBERSIDE POLICE DRAFT 
PROTOCOL 
  
The Director: Governance & Communities submitted a report which described 
work undertaken by the Monitoring officer to agree and implement a draft 
protocol for assessing and reporting incidents of abuse, intimidation, and 
harassment to Humberside Police’s Single Point of Contact. 
  
The Monitoring Officer explained that this built upon work by the Standards 
Committee throughout the year to ensure that councillors were supported in 
their roles, and that action could be taken to tackle abuse. 
  
A short protocol between North Lincolnshire Council and Humberside Police 
was submitted, intended to facilitate the reporting of serious incidents.  This 
included a concise form for members or any officers working closely with 
elected councillors to complete and send through to the police, where 
appropriate.   
  
Resolved – (a) That the Standards Committee approve the draft protocol and 
reporting form, pending comments and feedback from Humberside Police, 
and (b) that a further report be submitted to the Standards Committee’s next 
meeting.    
  
  

460 ANNUAL STANDARDS TRAINING - VERBAL UPDATE 
  
The Director: Governance & Communities updated the Committee on the 
Monitoring Officer’s intention to host two standards training sessions for 
councillors and clerks on 6 and 7 September 2023.  In addition, work was 
underway to develop a short, online standards training package which would 
be made available to all town and parish councils. 

Page 2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
29 June 2023 

 

  
Resolved – That the situation be noted, and that all clerks and councillors be 
invited to attend either of the planned sessions. 
  

461 COMPLAINTS SCHEDULE - UPDATE. 
  
The Director: Governance & Communities submitted a report updating the 
Standards Committee on progress made on all outstanding complaints and 
investigations, and any relevant issues related to the Complaints Schedule.  
  
Resolved – That the schedule be noted.  
  

462 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT BY 
REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH MUST BE SPECIFIED. 
  
There were no urgent or additional items for consideration at the meeting.  
  
 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

Report of the Director: Outcomes              Meeting: 9 November 2023 

 
 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 

REVIEW OF PROTOCOL OF MEMBER OFFICER RELATIONS 
(PART E CODE 3 OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTIUTION) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
             2.1  The Council at is meeting on 5 October 2023 (minute 2927 refers) 

approved a review of the above protocol as requested by the Leader 
of the Council and his Executive, which complied with good practice 
to review regularly codes and protocols contained within Part E of 
the council’s Constitution. In accordance with requirements of Article 
15 (15.01) ‘Review and Revision of the Constitution’ this review is to 
be carried out through the council’s Standards Committee and a 
recommended revised draft protocol be reported to the December 
meeting of the Council for consideration and approval. 

 
             2.2    Having researched and corresponding protocols of other councils, 

and considered the associated content of the council’s Code of 
Conduct for Members, Code of Conduct for Officers and the council’s 
Media Relations and Publicity Management Policy, the council’s 
current ‘Protocol on Member/Officer Relations’ attached as appendix 
1 has been reviewed and a draft revised protocol is attached as 
appendix 2 for the committee’s consideration. 

 
 

3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

3.1 To recommend to Council that the revised draft protocol on 
Member/Officer Relations at appendix 2 be approved and adopted 
(with any suggested amendments included). 

 

     
   STANDARDS COMMITTEE          

1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT 

       1.1   To consider a draft revised ‘Protocol on Member/Officer Relations’ (Part 
E Code 3 of the council’s Constitution) attached as appendix 2.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

3.2   That the revised draft protocol on Member/Officer Relations not be 
approved and adopted. 

 
4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 
  

1.1 A review of Part E Code 3 ‘Protocol on Member/Officer Relations’ has 
been carried out in accordance with good practice and complies with 
Article 15 ‘Review and Revision of the Constitution. The revised draft 
protocol provides an enhanced guide for members and officers of the 
Council in their relations with one another in such a way as to ensure 
the smooth running of the Council and to foster good working 
relationships. 
 

1.2 The protocol also seeks to reflect the principles underlying the 
respective Codes of Conduct which apply to members and officers. 
The shared objective of these Codes is to enhance and maintain the 
integrity of local government and the Codes, therefore, they demand 
very high standards of personal conduct. Members and officers must 
at all times observe the protocol. Consequently, a breach of the 
provisions of the protocol may also constitute a breach of those 
Codes.  

 
1.3 This meeting of the Standards Committee as an experienced cross-

party group of members has the opportunity to consider the revised 
draft protocol and the meeting may also provide members who are not 
members of the Standards Committee with an opportunity to attend 
the meeting and observe or request to comment through the usual 
Council Procedure Rule D1.37b. 

 
1.4 Not to recommend approval of the revised draft ‘Protocol on 

Member/Officer Relations’ will not comply with good practice,  not 
provide an enhanced guide for members and officers of the Council in 
their relations with one another, which may impact upon their working 
relations and the operations, outcomes and reputation of the council 
and local government. 

 
 

5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. LEGAL, HR, 
PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.) 

  
5.1     There are no direct financial/resource implications associated with 

this report. 
 
6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND DISORDER, 

EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, RISK etc.)      
 

6.1   Effective member/officer working relations enhances and increases 
opportunities to deliver the desired outcomes of the council plan.  

Page 6



 

 
  

 
 
7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF 

APPLICABLE) 
 

7.1     An integrated impact assessment is not required for this report. 
  

8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 
DECLARED 

 
8.1       The Head of Corporate Marketing and Communications and 

Monitoring Officer have been consulted. 
 
8.2      There are no conflicts of interest. 

                       
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

9.1      That the revised draft ‘Protocol on Member/Officer Relations’ 
Relations’ (Part E Code 3 of the council’s Constitution) be considered, 
and it be recommended to Council that it be approved and adopted. 

 
                                               DIRECTOR OF OUTCOMES 

 
 
Church Square House 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire 
Post Code: DN15 6NL 
Author: RAMell 
Date: 31 October 2023 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report –  
The corresponding protocols of other councils, the council’s Code of Conduct for 
members and for officers, and the council’s Media Relations and Publicity 
Management Policy. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 
 
E3.01 GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 

The following general principles shall govern the relations between members 
and employees. 

 
(a) Members and employees recognise that they have an essential role to 

  play in the success of the council in achieving its vision, mission and 
  promise. 
 
 (b) Members and employees will work to develop relationships which are 
  based on mutual respect, trust and support. 
 
 (c) Members and employees recognise that both are subject to and must 
  abide by national and local codes of conduct. 
 

(d) Members and employees will avoid actions which may be seen as 
promoting personal gain but will work to achieve the Council’s agreed 
objectives. 

 
(e) Employees will at all times abide by the politically restricted post 

provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and 
Regulations made thereunder and, except in the case of political 
assistants, will not act in the course of their employment in a manner 
which could create a suspicion that they favour one political group above 
another. 

 
(f) Members and political groups will seek advice only on Council business 

and not use council resources for political business.  
 
 (g) It is recognised by members and employees that occasions will arise 
  when politically sensitive information is communicated to an employee 
  in confidence. In those circumstances the employee will not   
  communicate that information to other party groups. 
 
 
 
 

PART E CODE 3 - PROTOCOL ON MEMBER/OFFICER RELATIONS

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                       APPENDIX 2 

 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PRINCIPLES 

1.1 The objectives of this protocol are to guide members and officers of the 
Council in their relations with one another in such a way as to ensure the 
smooth running of the Council and to foster good working relationships. 

1.2 The Council has adopted Codes of Conduct for both members and 
officers. The protocol also seeks to reflect the principles underlying the 
respective Codes of Conduct which apply to members and officers. The 
shared objective of these Codes is to enhance and maintain the integrity 
(real and perceived) of local government and the Codes, therefore, 
demand very high standards of personal conduct. 

1.3 Members and officers must at all times observe this protocol. This 
protocol is a local extension of the Members’ and Employees’ Codes of 
Conduct. Consequently, a breach of the provisions of this protocol may 
also constitute a breach of those Codes. 

1.4 This protocol should be read in conjunction with the Members’ and 
Employees’ Codes of Conduct, the Council’s Constitution and any 
guidance issued by the Standards Committee and/or Monitoring Officer. 

1.5 This protocol is to a large extent a written statement of current practice 
and convention. It seeks to promote greater clarity and certainty. If the 
protocol is followed it should ensure that members receive objective and 
impartial advice and that officers are protected from accusations of bias 
and any undue influence from members. 

1.6 Given the variety and complexity of relations between members and 
officers of the Council, this protocol does not seek to be comprehensive. 
It is hoped, however, that the framework it provides will serve as a guide 
to dealing with a range of circumstances. 

1.7 The provisions of the protocol are to be interpreted in accordance and in 
conjunction with the general seven principles applying to public 
life/office. These are the principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, 
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 

 

 

 

 

 

PART E CODE 3 - PROTOCOL ON MEMBER/OFFICER RELATIONS

Page 11



 

2.0  THE ROLE OF MEMBERS 

2.1 Members have a number of roles and need to be alert to the potential 
for conflicts of interest which may arise between the roles. Where such 
conflicts are likely, members may wish to seek the advice of senior 
colleagues, the relevant senior officer(s), and/or the Monitoring Officer. 

2.2 At all times members should be aware that the role they are performing 
may impact upon the nature of their relationship with officers and the 
expectations that officers may have of them. 

2.3 Collectively, members are the ultimate policymakers determining the 
core values of the council and approving the council’s policy framework, 
strategic plans, and budget. 

2.4 Members represent the community, act as community/place leaders, 
and promote the social, economic and environmental well-being of the 
community often in partnership with other agencies. 

2.5 Every member represents the interests of, and is an advocate for, their 
ward and individual residents. They represent the council in the ward, 
respond to the concerns of residents, meets with partner agencies, and 
often serves on local bodies. 

2.6 Some members have roles relating to their position as members of the 
Executive, Scrutiny Committees/Panels and other regulatory and/or 
quasi-judicial committees/board and sub-committees of the council. 
Some members may be appointed to represent the council on local, 
regional or national ‘outside’ bodies. 

2.7     As politicians, members may express the values and aspirations of the 
party-political groups to which they belong, recognising that in their role 
as members they have a duty always to act in the public interest. 

2.8 Members are not authorised to instruct officers other than: 

i. through the formal decision-making process. 

ii. to request the provision of consumable resources 
provided by the council for members’ use 

2.9 Members are not authorised to initiate or certify financial transactions, or 
to enter into a contract on behalf of the council, although they may be 
consulted on them. 

2.10 Members must avoid taking actions which are unlawful, financially 
improper, or likely to amount to maladministration.  

2.11 Members must respect the impartiality of officers and do nothing to 
compromise it, e.g. by insisting that an officer change their professional 
advice. 

Page 12



2.12 Members should only become involved in commercial transactions at the 
formal decision-making stage. When dealing with a commercial 
transaction members should be aware of the requirements of the 
council’s Contracts Procedure Rules.  

 

3.0 THE ROLE OF OFFICERS 

3.1 Officers are responsible for giving advice to members to enable them to 
fulfil their roles. In doing so, officers will take into account all available 
relevant factors. 

3.2 Under the direction and control of the council, officers manage and 
provide the council’s services within the framework of responsibilities 
delegated to them. This includes the effective management of 
employees and operational issues. 

3.3 Officers have a duty to implement decisions of the council which are 
lawful, and which have been properly approved in accordance with the 
requirements of the law and the council’s constitution, and duly 
minuted/recorded. 

3.4 Officers have a contractual and legal duty to be impartial. They must not 
allow their professional judgement and advice to be influenced by their 
own personal views. 

3.5 Officers must assist and advise all parts of the council. They must always 
act to the best of their abilities in the best interests of the council as 
expressed in the council’s formal decisions. 

3.6 Officers must be alert to issues which are, or are likely to be, contentious 
or politically sensitive, and be aware of the implications for members, the 
media or other sections of the public. 

3.7 Officers have the right not to support members in any role other than that 
of a member, and not to engage in actions incompatible with this 
protocol. In particular, there is a statutory limitation on officers’ 
involvement in political activities. 

3.8 Some officers may be appointed to local, regional or national bodies 
because of their particular skills and expertise. They may be appointed 
specifically to represent the Council or in their personal capacity. 

 

 

 

4.0 THE RELATIONSHIP: GENERAL POINTS 

Page 13



4.1 Members are elected by, and officers are servants of the public and 
members and officers are indispensable to one another.  However, their 
responsibilities are distinct. Members are accountable to the electorate 
and serve only so long as their term of office lasts. Officers are 
accountable to the council as a whole. Their job is to give advice to 
members (individually and collectively) and to carry out the council’s 
work under the direction and control of the council. 

4.2 The conduct of members and officers should be such as to instil mutual   
confidence and trust. The key elements are a recognition of and a 
respect for each other’s roles and responsibilities. These should be 
reflected in the behaviour and attitude of each to the other, both publicly 
and privately. 

4.3 At the heart of the Codes, and this protocol, is the importance of mutual 
respect. Member/officer relationships are to be conducted in a positive 
and constructive way. Therefore, it is important that any dealings 
between members and officers should observe standards of courtesy 
and that neither party should seek to take unfair advantage of their 
position nor seek to exert undue influence on the other party. The use of 
more extreme forms of behaviour and emotion is rarely conducive to 
establishing mutual respect and is not a basis for constructive 
discussion. 

4.4 Informal and collaborative two-way contact between members and 
officers is encouraged. But personal familiarity can damage the 
relationship, as might a family or business connection. Inappropriate 
relationships can be inferred from language/behaviour. Close personal 
familiarity between individual members and officers can damage the 
relationship of mutual respect and prove embarrassing to other 
members and officers. To protect both members and officers, officers 
should address members as ‘councillor’ and/or mayor, save where 
circumstances clearly indicate that a level of informality is appropriate, 
for example, a one-to-one meeting between a director and their 
respective executive/cabinet member. 

4.5 Members and officers should inform the Monitoring Officer of any 
relationship which might be seen as unduly influencing their work in their 
respective roles. 

4.6 It is not enough to avoid actual impropriety. Members and officers should 
always be open about their relationships to avoid any reason for 
suspicion and any appearance of improper conduct. Where a personal 
relationship has been disclosed, those concerned should avoid a 
situation where conflict could be perceived. Specifically, a member 
should not sit on a body or participate in any decision which directly 
affects the officer on a personal basis. 

Page 14



4.7 A member should not raise matters openly or through the media relating 
to the conduct or capability of an officer in a manner that is incompatible 
with the objectives of this protocol and particularly in relation to any 
pending or ongoing complaint or disciplinary process involving the 
officer. This is a long-standing tradition in public service. An officer has 
no means of responding to such criticisms in public. Furthermore, open 
criticism may prejudice the bringing of disciplinary proceedings in 
circumstances where this might otherwise be appropriate. 

4.8 A member who feels they have not been treated with proper respect, 
courtesy or has any concern about the conduct or capability of an officer 
should: 

i. avoid personal attacks on, or abuse of, the officer at all 
times, 

ii. ensure that any criticism is well founded and constructive, 

iii. never make a criticism in public, and 

iv. take up the concern with the officer privately. 

 

4.9 If direct discussion with the officer is inappropriate (e.g. because of the 
seriousness of the concern) or fails to resolve the matter, they should 
raise the matter with the respective Director. The Director will then look 
into the facts and report back to the member. If the member continues 
to feel concern, then they should raise the issue with the Chief 
Executive who will look into the matter afresh. Any action taken against 
an officer in respect of a complaint will be in accordance with the 
provisions of the council’s Human Resources disciplinary rules and 
procedures. 
 

4.10 Challenge in a constructive and non-confrontational way is important in 
ensuring policies and service performance are meeting the council’s 
strategic objectives, especially during the overview and scrutiny 
process. Nothing in this paragraph is therefore intended to stop 
members holding officers to account for their decisions made under 
delegated powers. Officers are accountable to the council for any 
decision they make and may be required to report to and answer 
questions from a scrutiny panel except in relation to council functions. 
The scrutiny panels may also call-in executive decisions before they 
are implemented including key decisions taken by officers. Members 
may also individually request sight of delegated officer decision records 
and raise queries about a decision with the decision-maker or an 
appropriate senior officer. 
 
 

Page 15



4.11 Where an officer feels that they have not been properly treated with 
respect and courtesy by a member or have been bullied by a member, 
they should raise the matter with their Director especially if they do not 
feel able to discuss it directly with the member concerned. In these 
circumstances the Director, will after consultation with the complainant 
take appropriate action either by approaching the individual member 
and/or political group leader/secretary or by referring the matter to the 
Monitoring Officer in the context of the Standards Committee 
considering the complaint. 

 

5 THE RELATIONSHIP: DECISION MAKING 
 

5.1 The Executive arrangements adopted by the council provide for an 
officer scheme of delegation. The details of this scheme are set out in 
the council’s Constitution. 

 
5.2 Both members and officers have responsibility for decision making for 

functions of the Council, Executive, overview and scrutiny and 
regulatory committees/board and sub-committees. These are set out 
within the council’s Constitution and officer Scheme of Delegations 
and Appointment of Proper Officers. 

 
5.3 Members and officers will comply with the advice and guidance set 

out in the council’s Constitution Articles, Functions, Procedure Rules 
and in addition to any other associated relevant code of conduct, 
guidance and protocol whilst involved in the decision-making 
processes. 

 

6 THE RELATIONSHIP: OFFICER SUPPORT TO MEMBERS: GENERAL 
POINTS 
 
6.1 Officers are responsible for day-to-day managerial and operational 

decisions within the council and members should avoid inappropriate 
involvement in such matters. 

6.2 Officers will provide support to both the Executive and all members 
in their respective roles. 

6.3 The respective roles and responsibilities of members and officers in 
relation to employment issues are set out in the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

6.4 A member should not sit on an appeal hearing if the appellant is a 
friend, a relative, or an officer with whom the member has had a 
close working relationship. 

Page 16



6.5 Certain statutory officers – Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer as the S151 officer – have 
specific statutory roles. These are addressed in the council’s 
Constitution. The roles need to be understood and respected by all 
members. 

6.6 The following key principles reflect the way in which the officer 
generally relates to members: 

i. all officers are employed by, and accountable to the 
council as a whole. 

ii. they have a duty to implement the properly authorised 
decisions of the council. 

iii. support from officers is needed for all the council’s 
functions including full Council, Scrutiny Panels, the 
Executive, Regulatory committees/board and individual 
members representing their communities etc. 

iv. day-to-day managerial and operational decisions remain 
the responsibility of the Chief Executive and other officers. 

v. Officers will be provided with training and development to 
help them support the various member roles effectively 
and to understand associated structures. 
 

6.8 On occasion, a decision may be reached which authorises named 
officers to take action following consultation with a member or 
members. The member or members may offer their views or advice 
to the officer who must take them into account.  The member or 
members must not apply inappropriate pressure on the officer. The 
decision remains the responsibility of the officer themselves. It must 
be recognised that it is the officer, rather than the member or 
members, who takes the action, and it is the officer who is 
accountable for it. 

6.9 Finally, it must be remembered that officers are accountable to a 
Director. That is, 

Officers work to the instructions of their senior officers, not individual 
members. It follows that, whilst such officers will always seek to 
assist a member, they must not be asked to exceed the bounds of 
authority they have been given by their managers. Except when the 
purpose of an enquiry is purely to seek factual information, members 
should normally direct their requests and concerns to a senior officer, 
at least in the first instance. 

6.10 Whilst officers should always seek to assist a member, they must 
not, in so doing, go beyond the bounds of whatever authority they 
have been given by their Director. Where appropriate, officers should 
make a member aware of the limits of the officer’s authority and 
explain that the matter would have to be referred to the Director. 

Page 17



6.11 Officers will do their best to give timely responses to members’ 
enquiries. Officers’ work priorities are set and managed by senior 
managers. Members should avoid disrupting officers’ work by 
imposing their own priorities. 

6.12 Members will endeavour to give timely responses to enquiries from 
officers. 

. 

7 THE RELATIONSHIP: OFFICER SUPPORT TO MEMBERS AND PARTY 
GROUPS 

7.1 It must be recognised by all members and officers that in discharging 
their duties and responsibilities, officers serve the council as a whole 
and not any political group, combination of groups or any individual 
member of the council. 

7.2 There is statutory recognition for political party groups, and it is 
common practice for such groups to give preliminary consideration 
to matters of council business in advance of such matters being 
considered by the relevant council decision making body. Officers 
may properly be called upon to support and contribute to such 
deliberations by political groups but must at all times maintain 
political neutrality.  All officers must, in their dealings with political 
groups and individual members, treat them in a fair and even-
handed manner. 
 

7.3 The support provided by officers can take many forms. Whilst in 
practice such officer support is likely to be in most demand from 
whichever political group is for the time being in control of the 
council, such support is available to all political groups. 

 
7.4 Certain points must, however, be clearly understood by all those 

participating in this type of process, members, and officers alike. In 
particular: 

 
i. Officer support must not extend beyond providing information 

and advice in relation to matters of council business. Officers 
must not be involved in advising on matters of political party 
business.  The observance of this distinction will be assisted 
if officers are not present at meetings or parts of meetings, 
when matters of political party business are to be discussed. 
 

ii. Political group meetings, whilst they form part of the 
preliminaries to council decision making, are not empowered 
to make decisions on behalf of the Council. Conclusions 
reached at such meetings do not therefore rank as ‘council 

Page 18



decisions’ and it is essential that they are not interpreted or 
acted upon as such. 

 
iii. the presence of an officer confers no formal status on such 

meetings in terms of council business and must not be 
interpreted as doing so. 

 
iv. where officers provide information and advice to a political 

group meeting in relation to a matter of council business, this 
cannot act as a substitute for providing all necessary 
information and advice to the relevant decision making body, 
committee or sub-committee when the matter in question is 
considered. 

 
7.5 Special care needs to be exercised whenever officers are requested 

to provide information and advice to a political group meeting which 
includes persons who are not members of the council. Such persons 
are not bound by the Members’ Code of Conduct (in particular, the 
provisions concerning the declaration of interests and confidentiality) 
and for this and other reasons, officers may not be able to give the 
same level of advice as they would to a member only meeting nor give 
advice to such meetings. 

 
7.6 Officers have the right to refuse a request to attend a political group 

meeting and will normally not attend a meeting of a political group 
where some of those attending are not members of the council. 

 
7.7 The duration of an officer’s attendance at a political group meeting will 

be at the invitation/discretion of the group, but an officer may leave at 
any time if they feel it is no longer appropriate to be there. 

 
7.8 An officer accepting an invitation to the meeting of one political group 

shall not decline an invitation to advise another political group about 
the same matter. They must give substantially the same advice to 
each. 

 
 

7.9 An officer who is not a senior officer shall not be invited to attend a 
political group meeting, but a senior officer may nominate another 
appropriate officer to attend on their behalf. 

 

7.10 An officer should be given the opportunity of verifying comments and 
advice attributed to them in any written record of a political group 
meeting. 

 

Page 19



7.11 No member will refer in public or at meetings of the council to advice 
or information given by officers to a political group meeting. 

 
7.12 Officers must respect the confidentiality of any political group 

discussions at which they are present in the sense that they should 
not relay the content of any such discussion to another political group 
or to any other members. This shall not prevent an officer providing 
feedback to other senior officers on a need-to-know basis. 

 
7.13 In relation to budget proposals: 
 

(i)the controlling political group shall be entitled to confidential 
discussions with officers regarding options and proposals. These will 
remain confidential until determined by the group, until published in 
advance of the full Council meetings or as part of a prepared motion 
to be circulated at that meeting; and 
 
(ii)the opposition group(s) shall also be entitled to confidential 
discussions with officers to enable them to formulate alternative 
budget proposals. These will remain confidential until determined by 
the opposition group(s) or until published in advance of the full Council 
meeting or as part of a prepared amendment (to the ruling group’s 
prepared motion) to be circulated at that meeting.  

 
7.14 It must not be assumed by any political group or member that any 

officer is supportive of any policy or strategy developed because of 
that officer’s assistance in the formulation of that policy or strategy. 

 
7.15 Any particular cases of difficulty or uncertainty in this area of officer 

advice to political groups should be raised with the Chief Executive 
who will discuss them with the relevant political group leader(s). 

 
 

8 OFFICER SUPPORT TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

8.1 The appropriate Directors, and/or senior officers may offer to arrange 
regular informal meetings with chairs of committees and sub-
committees. 

 
8.2 Senior officers (including the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance 

Officer equivalent) have the right to present reports and give advice to 
committees and sub-committees. 

 
8.3 Members of a committee or sub-committee shall take decisions within 

the remit of that committee or sub-committee and will not otherwise 
instruct officers to act on such matters. 

Page 20



 
9 OFFICER SUPPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE 

 

9.1 It is important that there should be a close working relationship between 
Executive members (as political managers/leaders of the council) and  
officers who support and/or interact with them.  However, such 
relationships should never be allowed to become so close, or  appear to 
be so close, as to bring into question the officer’s ability to deal impartially 
with other members and other party groups. 

9.2 Whilst Executive members will routinely be consulted as part of the 
process of drawing up proposals for consideration or the agenda for a 
forthcoming meeting, it must be recognised that in some situations an 
officer will be under a professional duty to submit a report.  Similarly, a 
Director or other senior officer will always be fully responsible for the 
contents of any report submitted in their name. This means that any such 
report will be amended only where the amendment reflects the 
professional judgement of the author of the report.  This is to be 
distinguished from a situation where there is a value judgement to be 
made.  Any issues arising between an Executive member and a Director 
in this area should be referred to the Chief Executive for resolution in 
conjunction with the Leader of the Council 
 

9.3 The Executive and its Members have wide ranging leadership roles, 
They will: 
 

i. lead the community planning process and the search for best 
value, with input and advice from scrutiny panels, relevant 
committees and any other persons as appropriate; 
 

ii. lead the preparation of the council’s policies and budget; 
 

 
iii. take in-year decisions on resources and priorities, together with 

other stakeholders and partners in the local community, to deliver 
and implement the budget and policies decided by the full 
Council; and 
 

iv. be the focus for forming partnerships with other local public, 
private, voluntary and community sector organisations to address 
local needs. 

 
9.4 Executive members will take decisions in accordance with the Constitution 

and will not otherwise direct officers. Senior officers will be responsible for 
implementing Executive’s decisions. 
 

Page 21



9.5 Officers will make arrangements for briefing members of the Executive 
about business within their remit. Senior officers and Executive members 
shall agree mutually convenient methods of regular contact. 

 
9.6 Where functions which are the responsibility of the Executive are 

delegated to officers (or other structures outside the Executive), the 
Executive will nevertheless remain accountable to the Council for the 
discharge of those functions. That is to say, the Executive will be held to 
account for both its decision to delegate a function and the way that the 
function is being carried out. Scrutiny Panels may call in and review the 
decisions of the Executive and officers acting under delegated authority 
and report the outcome of its review in accordance with overview and 
scrutiny procedure rules or associated rules within the council’s 
Constitution. 

 
9.7 Officers work for and serve the council as a whole. Nevertheless, as the 

majority of functions are the responsibility of the Executive, it is likely that 
in practice many officers will be working to the Executive for most of their 
time. The Executive must respect the political neutrality of officers. 
Officers must ensure that, even when they are predominantly providing 
advice and assistance to the Executive, their political neutrality is not 
compromised. 

 
9.8 In organising support for the Executive, there is a potential for tension 

between Directors and Executive members with portfolios. All Members 
and officers need to be constantly aware of the possibility of such tensions 
arising and both officers and members need to work together to avoid 
such tensions and conflicts existing or being perceived. 

 
9.9 Administrative and clerical support available to Executive and their lead 

members is provided by staff within the relevant political group office. 
 
 
 

10.THE RELATIONSHIP: OFFICER AND SCRUTINY PANELS 

 

10.1 Scrutiny Panels roles and functions are set out within the council’s 
Constitution, especially the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 
 

10.2 In exercising the right to call-in a decision of the Executive,  members of 
a scrutiny panel must seek officer advice if they consider the decision is 
contrary to the council’s budget and/or policy frameworks, or is unlawful. 

 
10.3 Provisions relating to the attendance of officers at a Scrutiny Panel are set 

out in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, 

Page 22



 
10.4 Members should not normally expect more junior officers to give evidence 

at scrutiny panels.  All requests should be made to senior officers in the 
first instance. 

 
10.5 When making requests for officer attendance, Scrutiny Panel members 

shall have regard to the workload of officers. 
 

10.6 It is recognised that officers required to appear before a Scrutiny Panel 
may often be those who have advised the Executive or another part of the 
council on the matter under consideration and this should be recognised 
and not challenged by scrutiny panel members.  

 
10.7 Officers should be prepared to justify advice given to the council, the 

Executive, scrutiny panels and other committees/board and sub-
committees even if/when the advice was not accepted. 

 
10.8 In giving evidence at scrutiny panels, officers must not be asked to give 

political views. 
 

10.9 Officers should respect members in the way they respond to members’ 
questions. 

 
10.10 Members should not question officers in a way which could be interpreted 

as harassment or bullying.  
 

10.11 Scrutiny proceedings must not be used to question the capability or 
competence of officers. Members need to make a distinction between 
reviewing the policies and performance of the council and its services, and 
appraising the personal performance of officers. 

 
10.12 Members and officers should be aware of published guidance and good 

practice relating to the operation of Scrutiny Panels, and specifically their 
scrutiny role. 

 
10.13 Officers’ evidence given at scrutiny panels should so far as possible, be 

confined to questions of fact and explanation relating to policies and 
decisions. 

 
10.14 Officers may explain what the policies are; the justification and objectives 

of those policies as the Executive sees them; the extent to which those 
objectives may have been met and how administrative/operational factors 
may have affected both the choice of policy measures and the manner of 
their implementation. 

 

Page 23



10.15 Officers may be asked to explain and justify advice they have given to 
members of the Executive prior to a decision being taken and they should 
also be asked to explain and justify decisions they themselves have taken 
under delegations from the Executive. 

 
10.16 As far as possible, officers should avoid being drawn into discussion of 

the merits of alternative policies where this is politically contentious. Any 
comment by officers on the Executive’s policies and actions should always 
be consistent with the requirement for officers to be politically impartial. 

 
10.17 In connection with the Scrutiny Panel’s policy review and development 

role, officers may reasonably be expected to advise on the effects which 
would arise out of the adoption of alternative policy options. Any advice 
on the development of policies should be consistent with the requirement 
for officers to be politically impartial. 

 
10.18 It is not a Scrutiny Panel’s role to act as a ‘disciplinary tribunal’ in relation 

to the actions of members or officers. Neither is it the role of officers to 
become involved in what would amount to disciplinary investigations on 
behalf of a Scrutiny Panel. This is the Head of Paid Service/Chief 
Executive’s function in relation to officers and the Monitoring Officer’s and 
the Standards Committee’s functions as regards the conduct of members. 

 
10.19 Scrutiny Panel’s questioning should be directed towards establishing the 

facts about what occurred in the making of decisions or implementing 
Council policies, and not towards the allocation of criticism or blame. (A 
Scrutiny Panel may recommend (but not require) the Chief Executive to 
institute a formal enquiry for this purpose). 

 
10.20 The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out general principles 

relating to all Scrutiny Panel witnesses. If questioning on the subject 
matter should stray substantially outside the matters that the Panel 
previously requested/indicated, the Chair should consider whether an 
adjournment may need to be considered to enable officers to provide the 
required information. Questioning should not stray outside any Terms of 
Reference of the relevant Scrutiny Panel. 

 
10.21 The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules enable Scrutiny Panels to 

appoint Working Groups and how these operate and report back to 
scrutiny panels. 

 
10.22 In relation to complaints brought by an individual (Members, officers, or 

members of the public) about decisions affecting them individually, a 
Scrutiny Panel must not act as an alternative to procedures within the 
Corporate Complaints Procedure, or for statutory complaints (Children 
and Adult) or external procedures required by the Local Government 

Page 24



Ombudsman, or an appeal to a Court for example. A Scrutiny Panel 
should not normally pass judgement on the merits of such a decision. 

 
10.23 In respect of officer support to Scrutiny Panels, Scrutiny Panels are 

provided with dedicated professional and administrative scrutiny officer 
(Democracy Services) support to assist them in carrying out their duties. 
The Council’s Directors remain responsible for providing specialised 
professional advice/information and should advise Scrutiny Panels of 
reasons if and why they would not wish to provide such services. 

 

11. THE RELATIONSHIP, OFFICER SUPPORT TO REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

11.1  At the request of a Chair of a Regulatory Committee, a briefing on 
business can be requested prior to a meeting of the Panel. 

12.2 The Director: Outcomes is responsible for determining the agenda for a 
formally convened meeting of a Regulatory Committee, in consultation 
with the Chair of the Panel. 
 

12.3 Members and officers need to be aware of additional codes and 
protocols which may refer to their specific service area, and 
arrangements for petitions and public speaking and site visits at Planning 
Committee and Licensing Committee (as part of the Constitution). 
 

12. MAYOR AND OFFICERS 

12.1 Officers will respect the position of Mayor (and Deputy Mayor) as first 
citizen and provide appropriate support. 

13.2 Detailed guidance for supporting the Mayor and Deputy Mayor at civic 
and community functions/roles can be provided by the Head of 
Democracy. 

 

 

13. MEMBERS AND OFFICERS ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

13.1 Members and officers serving on outside bodies will treat one another       
professionally and with respect. 

 
13.2 Members and officers should be aware of their role on any outside body 

to which they are appointed. In particular they should be aware of 
whether they are appointed: - 

i. As a representative of the council 
ii. As a ward member, representing the local 

community. 
iii. As a member of a political group, or 

Page 25



iv. In their individual capacity 
 

13.3 Where members and officers are appointed to an outside body as a 
representative of the council, they should ensure that they are aware of 
the council’s position in relation to matters within the body’s remit 
 

13.4 The appointee should seek to abide by the council’s position in relation 
to that matter unless their duties and responsibilities to the outside body 
prevent this. 

 
13.5 Should a member and an officer both be appointed to the same body as 

the council’s representatives they should seek to agree their 
understanding of the council’s position prior to any meeting of the body. 

 
13.6 If a member or officer is appointed to an outside body in a capacity other 

than as the council’s representative, they are not obliged to abide by the 
council’s position in respect of any matter. They should however seek to 
ensure that any view that they express or action they take cannot be 
perceived as bringing the council into disrepute. 

 
13.7 If a member and an officer have a disagreement in relation to a matter 

within the remit of that body, arising out of their respective roles on the 
body, they will treat that disagreement in a professional manner. In 
particular both the member and the officer will take steps to ensure that 
the disagreement does not affect the nature of their relationship within 
their respective roles as member and officer of the council. 

 

14. SUPPORT SERVICES TO MEMBERS AND POLITICAL GROUPS 

 
14.1 The only basis on which the council can lawfully provide support services 

(e.g. stationery, typing, printing, photocopying, transport etc) to members 
is to assist them in discharging their role as members of the council. Such 
support services must therefore only be used on council business. They 
should never be used in connection with party political or campaigning 
activity or for private purposes. 

 

15. MEMBERS’ ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND TO COUNCIL DOCUMENTS 

 

15.1 Members have the ability to ask for information pursuant to their legal 
rights to information. Further details of these rights are set out in the 
Constitution’s  Access to Information Procedure Rules. 

 

Page 26



 

 

     16.    MEDIA  AND PUBLICITY 

              16.1   In respect of all associated member and officer matters relating to 
media and publicity the council’s current ‘Media Relations and Publicity 
Management Policy’ shall be applied. 

 

17.   ACCESS TO PREMISES 

 

17.1 Officers have the right to enter council land and premises to carry out 
their work. Some officers may have the legal power to enter property in 
the ownership of others. Members have a right of access to council land 
and premises to fulfil their duties. 

 
17.2 When making visits as individual members to fulfil their duties,   

members should; 

i. whenever practicable, notify and make advance arrangements 
with the appropriate manager or officer in charge. 

ii. comply with health and safety, safeguarding, security and other 
workplace rules; 

iii. not interfere with the services or activities being provided at the 
time of the visit; 

iv. if outside their own ward, ideally notify ward members 
beforehand; and 

v. take special care at schools and establishments serving 
vulnerable sections of society to avoid giving any impression of 
improper or inappropriate behaviour. 

 

18.  USE OF COUNCIL RESOURCES 

 
18.1 The Council provides all members with services such as printing and 

photocopying, and goods such as stationery, laptops, mobile phones 
and personal computer equipment etc., to assist them in discharging 
their roles as members of the Council. These goods and services are 
paid for from the public purse. They should not be used for private 
purposes or in connection with party political or campaigning activities. 

 
18.2 Members should ensure they understand and comply with the council’s 

own rules about the use of such resources, particularly regarding ICT 
and data security. 
 

Page 27



18.3 Members should not put pressure on officers to provide resources or   
support which officers are not permitted to give. Examples are: 

i. business which is solely to do with a political party; 
ii. work in connection with a ward or constituency party political 

meeting; electioneering; 
iii. work associated with an event attended by a member in a 

capacity other than as a member of the council; 
iv. private personal correspondence; 
v. work in connection with another body or organisation where a 

member’s involvement is other than as a member of the council; 
and 

vi. support to a Member in his/her capacity as a councillor of 
another local authority. 
 

     19     CO-OPTED MEMBERS 

 
19.1 Officers should provide the same level of support to co-opted members 

of as they provide to other (elected) members, for example by providing 
them with the same agenda papers, associated documents, briefings 
and training opportunities. Officers and elected members should afford 
co-opted members the same level of respect and opportunity to 
contribute (so far as their role permits them to do so), as to any other 
member of a committee/panel/board. 

 

20  BREACHES OF THE PROTOCOL 
 

20.1 Allegations of breaches of this protocol by members may be referred to the 
Monitoring Officer initially, and if required by them to the relevant Leader 
and/or Chief Whip of a political group. However, in certain circumstances a 
breach of this protocol might constitute a breach of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct, in which case a complaint could be submitted/considered in 
accordance with the council’s Standards Arrangements. 

 
20.2 Allegations of breaches by officers are to be referred to the employee’s 

Director for consideration of appropriate action including disciplinary 
investigation under the Human Resources council disciplinary rules. 

 

21      MONITORING, REVIEW AND INTERPRETATION 
 

21.1  The Monitoring Officer will in accordance with good governance/practice 
monitor and review regularly this protocol and propose any significant 
amendments through the Standards Committee before approval by 
Council. 

Page 28



 
21.2 Interpretation of this protocol will be determined by the Monitoring Officer. 

                                                                                                                 RAMOct23 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director: Outcomes           Agenda Item    
        Meeting: 9 November 2023                                    

 
 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Renewal of Dispensation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

2.1  At its meeting on 6 November 2015, the committee granted a 
dispensation to enable all members of the council to participate in a 
motion concerning TATA Steel, now British Steel, at the meeting of full 
council on 10 November 2015.  

 
2.2  This dispensation was extended for a further 12 months each November 

since, and renewed again by the committee at their meeting on 9 
November 2022 to enable all members to continue to discuss and 
debate issues relating to the steel industry.  

 
2.3 The terms of the dispensation granted by the committee in November 

2015 and renewed by the committee every year since were as follows: 
 

“The committee, exceptionally, considered it appropriate that a 
dispensation be granted to all members of the council to participate in 
the debate and vote on this motion pursuant to section 33 (2) (c) of the 
Localism Act 2011 and any related motions or items that come before 
the council for consideration. This dispensation to apply for a period of 
twelve months unless rescinded earlier by the committee.” 

 
Minutes 116, 170, 192, 236, 288, 310, 386 and 433 of the committee 
refers. 

               
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT 

1.1 To consider renewing the dispensation granted to all members by the 
committee on 6 November 2015, subsequently renewed every year, 
concerning motions relating to British Steel (formerly TATA Steel).

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



 

2.4  The committee recognised that many members of the council were either 
past or present employees of the steel industry or had family members 
and friends who were, and as such the motion may give rise to 
declaration requirements under the council’s Code of Conduct. 
Notwithstanding, the committee, exceptionally, considered that all 
members should be free to participate in debates and contribute their 
knowledge and experience of the steel industry so as to ensure the fullest 
debate in the interests of the residents of North Lincolnshire. 

 
2.5 The dispensation has been utilised a number of times, most recently 

during an Extraordinary Meeting of Council on 28 June 2019 where 
Council unanimously passed a joint motion in support of the steel 
industry, its workforce, and the wider community.  

 
2.6 The renewed dispensation is due to expire on 9 November 2023 and the 

purpose of this report is for the committee to consider whether it should 
be renewed again, in light of the continuing interest in British Steel, and 
the likelihood that the council will continue to receive reports and debate 
items on its progress. 

 
 

3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

3.1 To further renew the dispensation granted by the committee on 6 
November 2015 and renewed on 23 November 2016, 22 November 
2017, November 2018, 13 November 2019, 11 November 2020, 10 
November 2021, and 9 November 2022.  
 

3.2 Not to renew the dispensation granted by the committee on 6 November 
2015 and renewed on 23 November 2016, 22 November 2017, 21 
November 2018, 13 November 2019, 11 November 2020,10 November 
2021 and 9 November 2022. 

 
 
4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 
  

4.1 To renew the dispensation would remove any ambiguity over the position 
and ensure that members that may have interests remain unhindered by 
the declaration requirements from fully participating in any debates 
concerning British Steel. 
 

4.2 Not to renew the dispensation may impede the ability of the council to 
fully debate matters concerning British Steel, contrary to the interests of 
the residents of North Lincolnshire. 
 

5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. LEGAL, HR, 
PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.) 

  
5.1     There are no financial or other resource implications arising from this 

report. 

Page 32



 

 
6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND DISORDER, 

EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, RISK etc.)      
 

6.1  British Steel is a key partner and an important employer in North 
Lincolnshire.  As such, there are links with the Council Plan and it would 
be beneficial for members to be allowed to freely discuss relevant issues. 

 
6.2 There are no crime and disorder, equalities, environmental or risk issues 

arising from this report. 
 

 
7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 
 

7.1     An Integrated Impact Assessment is not required.   
  

8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 
DECLARED 

 
8.1 As of the date of this report no conflict of interests have been identified. 

 
8.2 All Independent Persons and the Group Secretaries of both political 

groups have been consulted on the contents of this report. 
 

                    
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

9.1   That pursuant to section 33 (2) (c) of the Localism Act 2011 the 
dispensation granted by the Committee on 6 November 2015, 
subsequently renewed on 23 November 2016, 22 November 2017, 21 
November 2018, 13 November 2019, 11 November 2020, 10 November 
2021 and 9 November 2022 be renewed for a further twelve month 
period.   

 
DIRECTOR: OUTCOMES 

 
Civic Centre/ 
Church Square House 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire 
Post Code 
Author: Will Bell / Dean Gillon 
Date: 26 October 2023 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report –  
 
Minute 116 of the Standards Committee of 6 November 2015. 
Minute 156 of the Standards Committee of 13 July 2016. 
Minute 170 of the Standards Committee of 23 November 2016. 
Minute 192 of the Standards Committee on 22 November 2017. 

Page 33



 

Minute 236 of the Standards Committee on 21 November 2018. 
Minute 288 of the Standards Committee on 13 November 2019. 
Minute 310 of the Standards Committee on 11 November 2020. 
Minute 386 of the Standards Committee on 10 November 2021. 
Minute 433 of the Standards Committee on 9 November 2022 
 
 

Page 34



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

Complaint Complainant Complaint against Received Assessed Outcome 
SC/22/01 Member of North 

Lincolnshire Council 
Five Members of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

13 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/02 Member of the public Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

18 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/03 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

19 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/04 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

19 January 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/05 Member of the public Member of Worlaby Parish 
Council 

2 February 2022 16 March 2022 None 

SC/22/06 Officer of Brigg Town 
Council 

Member of Brigg Town 
Council 

23 March 2022 20 April 2022 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/22/07 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

4 April 2022 27 April 2022 None 

SC/22/08 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

20 April 20 May 2022 None 

SC/22/09 Monitoring Officer Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

20 May 2022          - Withdrawn 

SC/22/10 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 
 

25 May 2022 14 July 2022 None 

SC/22/11 Member of the public Six Members of South 
Ferriby Parish Council 

6 June 2022 8 August 2022 None 

SC/22/12 Member of the public Member of Crowle Town 
Council 

30 June 2022 14 July 2022 None 

SC/22/13 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

8 September 2022 12 December 2022 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/22/14 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

13 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/15 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

20 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/16 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

23 September 2022 12 December 2022 Investigation 
ongoing 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 8



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

SC/22/17 Member of the public Member of Barnetby Parish 
Council 

29 September 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/18 Member of the public Member of Barnetby Parish 
Council 

3 October 2022 25 October 2022 None 

SC/22/19 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

15 November 2022          - Resolved 
informally 

SC/22/20 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

19 December 2022 7 March 2023 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/23/01 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

24 January 2023          - Resolved 
informally 

SC/23/02 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

8 February 2023 7 March 2023 None 

SC/23/03 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

14 February 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/04 Member of the public Six members of Burringham 
Parish Council 

7 March 2023 23 April 2023 None 

SC/23/05 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

7 March 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/06 Member of the public Two Members of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

10 March 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/07 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 March 2023         - Not accepted 

SC/23/08 Member of the public Member of Burringham 
Parish Council 

22 March 2023 23 April 2023 None 

SC/23/09 Member of the public Member of Cadney cum 
Howsham Parish Council 

3 April 2023 29 June 2023 None 

SC/23/10 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 May 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/11 Member of the public Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

10 May 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/12 Member of Owston 
Ferry Parish Council 

Member of Owston Ferry 
Parish Council 

19 May 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/13 Member of Winterton 
Town Council 

Member of Winterton Town 
Council 

5 June 2023 29 June 2023 None 

P
age 36



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

SC/23/14 Officer of Winterton 
Town Council 

Member of Winterton Town 
Council 

5 June 2023 29 June 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/15 Member of the public Member of Ashby Parklands 
Parish Council 

5 June 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/16 Member of the public Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

8 June 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/17 Member of Goxhill 
Parish Council 

Member of Goxhill Parish 
Council 

12 June 2023 6 September 2023 Recommendation 
of mediation 

SC/23/18 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

20 July 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/19 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

21 July 2023 6 September 2023 Withdrawn 

SC/23/20 Member of the public Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

25 July 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/21 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

27 July 2023 6 September 2023 None 

SC/23/22 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

1 August 2023 6 September 2023 Investigation 
ongoing 

SC/23/23 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

16 August 2023 9 November 2023  

SC/23/24 Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Three Members of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

23 August 2023 9 November 2023  

SC/23/25 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

7 September 2023 9 November 2023  

SC/23/26 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

7 September 2023 -  Not accepted 

SC/23/27 Officer of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

Member of North 
Lincolnshire Council 

26 September 2023 9 November 2023  

SC/23/28 Member of the public Member of Roxby cum Risby 
Parish Council 

27 September 2023 9 November 2023  

SC/23/29 Member of Epworth 
Town Council 

Member of Epworth Town 
Council 

29 September 2023 18 October 2023 None 

SC/23/30 Member of Kirton in 
Lindsey Town Council 

Member of Kirton in Lindsey 
Town Council 

10 October 2023 9 November 2023  

P
age 37



Democratic Services/Support Services/Regulatory/Committees/Standards/Complaints Schedule (2022-23) 
 
 

SC/23/31 Member of Kirton in 
Lindsey Town Council 

Member of Kirton in Lindsey 
Town Council 

10 October 2023 9 November 2023  

 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	3 To take the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 29 June 2023 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.
	Minutes

	4 Review of Protocol on Member and Officer Relations
	Item 4 - Appendix 1 - Current Memb-Officer Relations
	E3.01	GENERAL PRINCIPLES

	Item 4 - Appendix 2 - Protocol for Members & Officer Relations

	5 Renewal of Dispensation - Steel Industry
	8 Complaints Schedule - Update.

